
are any errors in it, that you want to correct, you correct them, but you aren’t 
going to refuse to sign it, are you? 

Mr. TOBIAS. No; I don’t imagine I will. 
Mrs. TOBIAS. Do you know what he said, Mr. Jenner? 
Mr. .JEENER. What? 
Mrs. TOBIAS. We got this letter and he said, “I thought we was going to get 

around this Warren Commission-I didn’t think we were going to have to go 
before the Warren Commission.” 

Is this going to be the end of it or is there still going to be some more? 
Mr. Jssn-ER. Well, I can’t tell you whether it will be the end of it or not. 
Mrs. TOBIAS. Well, we may go from here-that letter said any place in the 

I’nited States and if it did we would have to go ; okay? 
Mr. JEXNEK. That’s right. If you have to come to Washington, your trans- 

portation will be paid. 
Mr. TOBIAS. That’s all right, but just make it summertime. 
Mrs. TOBIAS. Well, of course we will be glad to come. 
Mr. JENNEB. All right, thank you both for coming. 

TESTIMONY OF MRS. JESSE GARNER 

The testimony of Mrs. Jesse Garner was taken on April 6, 1964, at the Old Civil 
Courts Ruilding, Royal and Conti Streets, New Orleans, La., by Mr. Wesley J. 
Liebeler, assistant counsel of the President’s Commission. 

Mrs. Jesse Garner, 4911 Magazine Street, New Orleans, La., after being sworn 
by Mr. Wesley J. Liebeler, examiner, testified as follows : 

Mr. LIEBIXER. My name is Wesley J. Liebeler. I am a member of the legal 
staff of the President’s Commission investigating the assassination of President 
Kennedy. Staff members have been authorized to take testimony from witnesses 
by the Commission pursuant to authority granted to the Commission by Execu- 
tive Order So. 11130 dated November 29, 1963, and joint resolution of Congress 
No. 137. 

I understand, Mrs. Garner, that Mr. Rankin wrote to ~OLI and your husband 
last week advising you I would contact you concerning the taking of your 
testimony. 

IMrs. GARNER. Yes; he did. 
;\Ir. hEBEI,ER. And that he enclosed with the letter a copy of the Executive 

order and of the joint resolution to which I have referred, as well as a copy of 
the rules of procedure adopted by the Commission relating to thrtaking of 
testimony of witnesses. Is that not correct? 

Mrs. GAKNER. That’s right 
Mr. LIEBFJ~ER. We wish to inquire of you today, Mrs. Garner, conrerning your 

knowledge of Lee Harvey Oswald which you may have gained as a result of 
your being the manager or one of the managers of the apartment building in 
which Oswald lived while he was in New Orleans from approximately May 
through September 1963. Refore we get into the details of that, however, would 
you state your full name for the record? 

Mrs. GARNER. Mrs. Jesse Garner. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Where do you live? 
Mrs. GARNER. 4911 Magazine. 
Mr. LIERELEB. Where were you born?. 
Mrs. GARNER. Vacherie, La. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Have you lived all of your life in Louisiana? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELEB. Cari you tell us when you were born? 
Mrs. GARNER. March 16, 1919. 
Mr. LIEBELEER. Am I correct, in understanding that you and your husband are 

the managers of the premises known as 4905-11 Magazine Street here in New 
Orleans? 
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JLrs. GARSER. Yes; we are. 

Mr. LIEBELER. How long have you been the managers of those premises? 
Mrs. GARSER. Four Fears. 
Mr. I,II:I:~:LEx. Will you describe briefly for us the nature of the premises? 
Mrs. GABSEX. The house, do you mean? 
Mr. TJn:n~~;a. Yes. 
Mrs. GAI~SEX. Well, it is a double house. I live in one side, and the other side 

has two al~artnients, and I hare two al)nrtnients in the back, unattached to the 
house. nl)stnirs and downstairs. 

3Ir. IJERI~:I.EX. *\ni I correct in underslnnding that the half of the house ill 

\vhic.h you and your husband lil-e is known as XUl Magazine Street? 
Mrs. (:.\RsER. Right. 
JIr. IJEBEI.ER. And the front apartment, which I understand is one-half of 

the rest of the hous* 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes . . 
Mr. LIERELER. That is 4007 Magazine Street? 
Mrs. GARXER. Rlght. 
JIr. T,IKRELER. In the rear of the other side of the house is a xeljarate apart- 

ment nunrbered -MO3 Magazine Street? 
Mrs. GARSER. Right. 
Mr. TJEBELER. Did there (‘once a. time in the sprin, 0 of 1963 when you made the 

accluaintance of Lee Harvey Oswald? 
Mrs. GARSER. When I talked to them, or what? 
Mr. LIEBELER. Yes. 
Mrs. G.\RSER. Or when I rented him the place? 
Mr. T,IEIII~:I.ER. 110~ did you first come in contact with him, and what was 

your conrt>rsation with him, and what was the result of the conversation you 
had? 

Mrs. GARXER. The only thing was when he come to rent the apartment, there 
was another lady that brought him but they were in the car, but I didn’t notice 
the car. I didn’t 1)~ attention, and when she came to the door to ring the bell, 
she told me he was looking for an apartment and his mother and her was good 
friends, and she knew him from a baby. Little Lee she called htm, and that 
she had two places, I don’t remember exactly where she said-l think somewhere 
on I’rythnnia, and he went there first and they never had nothing empty, and 
she took him riding and they saw my sign and stopped. I showed him the 
al)artnient, and she took him through it. and she said it was very nice. She 
looked at the screen porch and said it would’ be very nice for the baby. We 
stood on the screen porch. and he asked me did I have any table lamps, they 
didn’t have any and his wife was going to home later, and we stood on the 
porch talking and she was telling me how long she knew him, since he was a 
little boy, and she was friends with his mother and he had gotten married 
overseas, and she hadn’t met his wife and hadn’t seen him for a long time, 
ant1 that is when he took a picture out of his wallet and showed a picture of 
his wife and baby. Sot the baby, I don’t think he had a picture of the baby. 
Maybe he did, I don’t remember. Well, I told him, I said, well, that is nice, 
overseas girls make nice wives at times, because I had one living upstairs not 
too long before that. and I said they were real nice. He said, “Yes, one thing, 
they don’t give IOU no lip.” I will never forget that. That is one thing he 
said, and that’s all I can really remember he said, and he paid me the month’s 
rent. 

Mr. LIEBEI.ER. How much was that? 
Mrs. GARNER. $65. 
Mr. IdElIELER. IIow did he pay that to you? Was it in cash? 
Mrs. GARSER. Cnsh; and he said that his wife would be coming in that Sun- 

day, the weekend you know. I think it was, it mnsi have been on the ninth. 
I don’t remember exactly when the ninth was. What day was it? 

Mr. IMELER. The 9th of May, according to the calendar with which the re- 
porter has graciously sul)l)lied us, was a Thursday. 

Mrs. GARXER. Thursday. That weekend, that is when she came in. 

Mr. IJEllELE11. Do you remember the name of this woman that was with 
Oswald? 
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Mrs. GARNER. So ; she never said her name and I didn’t ask her, but I know she 
was a middle-aged woman in about her middle fifties or late fifties, well kept, 
reddish looking hair with a ball in the back, and she wore glasses; a well kept 
woman. 

Mr. LIE~ELER. Did they say specifically they had stopped at your place because 
they had seen the sign advertising the apartment for rent? 

Mrs. GABSER. Yes; the sign. yes. She took him riding and seen the sign out. 
Mr. LIERELER. Do you remember any other conversation with either Oswald or 

this lady that first time you met Oswald? 
Mrs. G.\RSER. So ; that is about all, because then they left. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did Oswald move back to the apartment, or move into the 

apartment. before his wife came or did they come together and move in 
together? 

Mrs. G~RXER. So; he was in there a couple of clays before she came. 
Mr. LIEIIELER. Do you remember exactly when he moved in? Did he come 

back later on the %h, or did he come on the lOth? 
Mrs. GARXER. The next day, the next evening. 
Mr. LIEBELER. The next day. He moved in the next evening? 
Mrs. GARSER. The next evening. 
Mr. LIEBELER. That wnuld have been Friday the lOth? 
Xrs. GARNER. I don’t know if he stayed there, but he was there. 
Mr. LIEBELER. He did move some of his belongings in; is that correct? 
Mrs. GARTER Yes L . . . 
;\Ir. LIEBELER. Did you notice anythin g about his belongings, what kind of 

stuff he had? 
Mrs. GARNER. I didn’t see that. I didn’t see anything of that. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You didn’t see any suitcases he might have had? 
Mrs. GARNER. No. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you remember when his wife came? 
Mrs. GARNER. That weekend; on that Sunday. That was a Sunday. 
Mr. LIEBELER. How did she arrive? 
Mrs. GARNER. In this station wagon, that lady from Texas, that it had a Texas 

license, blue and tan station wagon or blue and white, something like that, and 
she also stayed a few days then when she brought the wife in, she stayed at least 
a week. 

Mr. LIEBELER. This was a woman from Texas? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Whom you later Iearned was named Mrs. Paine? Is that 
correct? 

Mrs. GARNER. Right. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Now, did you notice how many people there were in the station 

wagon when it arrived? 
Mrs. GARNER. No; I really didn’t. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you notice how many- 
Mrs. GARPTER. In fact, I didn’t see the station wagon when it arrived ; I didn’t 

see it until the next day. I saw it parked out there with the Texas license and 
figured, you know, she had come in, his wife, because that is where he told me 
she was coming from, Texas. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you later learn how many people were in the apartment, 
or came in the station wagon? 

Mrs. G~RXER. Yes; when my husband talked to Mrs. Paine outside, he told me 
she had two little girls. I didn’t know it, I didn’t see them. 

Mr. LIEIELER. And did Oswald himself have a little girl? 
Mrs. GARSER. A little girl, Jmle. 
Mr. LIERELER. And Osn-ald’s wife? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. I didn’t knolv she was in a family way. I didn’t know 

she was going to have another baby when she rented tbc apartment, because 
when I first saw her she didn’t look that way to me. 

Mr. LIEI~E~,EI{. You say Mrs. Paine stayed in the apartment about a week. 
Did you hare any conversation with her during that time? 

Mrs. GAIWEIL So; I never even saw the lady. I never saw her. I couldn’t 
tell you what she looked like. My husband saw her. 
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Mr. LIEBELER. You say hour husband had talked to her. I)id he tell you 

what she had said? 
Mrs. GARSER. So; I never asked him and he never said nothing. 
Mr. LIEDELFK. Did you ever hare any direct contact with either Oswald or 

his wife after they moved into the apartment? 
Jlrs. GARXR. Well, the first thing, they was there a couple of weeks and I 

haTe a window fan in the kitchen, and I take the screen down to hose it and 
clean it, and I didn’t put the screen back up. I just set it on the screen porch, 
and a couple of weeks later he com’e to me and asked me if I had a ladder 
and hammer, he was going to put the screen up. 

Mr. LIEIIELER. This was the screen that belonged on the window- 
Mrs. GAKSER. The screen belonged on the outside of the kitchen. I have a 

window fan and it gets dirty, and I take it off and hose it and clean it, but I 
didn’t put it back. I left it on the porch, and he wanted to put it back. 

Mr. JJEBELKX Was this a window fan in Oswald’s kitchen? 
Mrs. GARNER. It was in Oswald’s kitchen, and he wanted to put the screen 

up and asked me was it all right to put the screen up, and asked me would I 
loan him a ladder and a hammer. The hooks belonged to the screen to hook 
the screen, they was off, but I loaned him two nails and told him to tack the 
screen on so far, so I could take the nails off, and that would be it, so his 
wife conl’e outside in the meantime with the baby, and they was talking Russian 
and I couldn’t understand what they were saying. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you know it was the Russian language then? 

Mrs. GARKER. So: I don’t know. I just put two and two together when they 

come out with that Russian, but I knew she was Russian. He told me she was 

Russian when they crime to rent the apartment. I don’t know what made me 
say it, but I told him, I called him Lee. I said, “Lee, why don’t you talk English 
Co your little girl and your wife? That way she could learn to talk English, 
and when the little girl goes to school it wouldn’t be as hard 011 her.” 

He said, “She has time enough to learn that,” and he neyer had a nice word 
to say to me after that. I think that must hay-e made him hate me or some- 

thing like that, because he just passed me up all the time too. and never turned 
his head to look. 

Mr. LIEBELEH. Did he get the screen back up? 

Jlrs. GAIWCR. Yes; he tacked it back up, and I got my ladder and hammer 

back, and he nerer even said thank you or nothing. 

Jlr. I,IE~EI.ER. Did he tell mu any specific reason why he didn’t speak English 
to his wife and girl? 

Mrs. GARX~ER. So; that’s all he said, they had plenty time enough for that, 
something like that. 

Mr. LIEBEI,ER. Did you ever try to talk to Marina Oswald? 

Mrs. GARSER. Yes; I clicl when she would be outside hanging clothes. I 

tried to talk to her and to the baby, I talked to both, and she would put her 
hands orer her eyes and start crying. I asked her how she felt, and she would 

just do like this with her shoulders. 
Mr. LIEBELER. She shrugged her shoulders? 
Mrs. CMDER. Yes; and when she would see you she woulcl not try to say 

hello, and she always wore little pedal pushers around the house with a little 
shirt, and her hair was straight yulled back and pinned down. 

Mr. LIEUELER. This was Marina? 
Mrs. GARS~R. Yes. 

Mr. IJEIIELER. Did she hare long hair? 
Mrs. GAUER. Yes ; long enough, about here. 
Mr. LIBELER. Down to her shoulders? 
Mrs. GARSER. Yes. 

Mr. LIEDELER. Did you have any other contact with Oswald yourself, per- 
sonally? 

Mrs. G.\RXER. Tes. One time I went, for my rent, it was a few days past 
clue, the rent, and I mean, you know, when you let them go they wait too long 

and they don’t ever get it. It \yas a few days later, I was going around the 
drive to see about my rent and he was starting out the drire to catch a bus 

on the corner, and when he saw me he turned around and looked, figured I 
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was coming after the rent. I said, “Oswald, you got the rent? The landlady 
is coming for the rent.” He said, “Yes, I have it.” 

He was fixing to go to the bus, so he turned around to walk up the drive 
to go get the money, and I said. “Go on where you have to go; I vvill get it 
later,” and he just pushed me aside and went by me and went and got the 

money and handed it to me. 
;\lr. LIEBELER. 1)id he actually push you aside physically? 
Mrs. GAKSER. Yes, just like that, and I called to him and I said, “Sever 

mind; go where you have to go and I will get it later,” and he just took me 
like this and’pushed me aside and just went, you know, just went by me like 

that. 
Mr. LIIWRLER. He actually laid his hands on you? 
Mrs. GARXER. I’ut his hands on me just like that, and lmshed me. 
Mr. LIEBELEK. l)id he say anything? 
Mrs. GARXER. He didn’t say a thing. He come hack and gave me the money 

and that was it. 
Mr. LIEBELER. When was the next time you had any- 

Mrs. GaFrxER. \Yell, I didn’t talk to him any more than that, because I noticed 
how he was. \vnnldn’t answer you when you say good morning or good evening, 
hello or gcod morning, so I just never bothered. The only thing, at night he 

used to come past behind the house and always wore trunks, yellow trunks 
with thongs, no top shirt, and he used to stuff all my garbage cans and all the 
garbage cans on the street, and never would talk to anybody, pass right 1)~ 

the door of the apartment of the other people and never did talk to anybody. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You never had any conversation with him after this time when 

you asked him about the rent? 
RCrs. G~RXER. Xo. that’s ahout it. The most I talked to him was when he 

rented the apartment, that is the day he took it, and that. lady done most 
of the talking. In fact. she had given me her phone number to let me call 
and let her l<no\r how Oswald was doing, and the wife when the wife would 

come in. I figured what in the world I want that for and I just threw it away 
and didn’t bother with it. I didn’t think anything like this was going to come 

UP. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did Oswald ever have any visitors to his apartment, do you 

know? 
Xrs. GARXER. Yes. As I said, I never did see anybody else around there 

myself except this middle-aged niaii and middle-aged woman like 1 said that 

come and 1)icked hinl up one weekend on a Saturday and come back that Sunday 
after, because I happened to he sitting on the has and saw them (‘ome up. 

Mr. LIEBFXRR. \Vould this have been in .July? 

Mrs. GARSER. Ahout in July, I imagine. I know there was a lot of mosquitoes 

around that time; I think it was July sometime. I am really not sure. It was 
hot. 

Xr. LIEBELER. How many times did these people come to see Oswald? 
Mrs. G~RSEK. That is twice I seen, once I seen both of them come in the 

evening one night, and they didn’t stay very long, hut I was sitting outside. And 
that weekend, it was just him come to pick him up. 

Mr. LIELIELRR. You saw the man come to pick ~1, Oswald on two different 

occasions? Is that right? 
Mrs. GMXER. One occasion they came. 
Mr. LIERELER. The man was with a woman on one occasion? 
Mrs. GARKER. At night one time, and then when he come to pick him up for 

the weekend he was by himself. 
Mr. LIEBELRR. Altogether, he was there twice? 

Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Once by himself? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. And once with a woman ; is that right? 

Mrs. GARNER. .Yes. If they was there before that, I didn’t see them. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You only saw him come twice? 

Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
hlr. LIEBELER. Approximately how old was this man? 
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Mrs. G.\RSER. I don’t ltno\v. Like I sag. I am not too good at judging ages. 
I would say in his late fifties or early aistirs. something like that. He had a 

high forehead. it high l~vlk rizzht here. :lIld liilltl of greyiqlt. 
1\Ir. LIEBELER. Could you tlescril)e him for us. l)lensc? \\‘as he a \\-bite man? 

Mrs. G.~RSER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did he al)l)tar to be 8l)anish or (‘uban extraction to you? 

Mrs. GARSER.’ Ko, no, no. 
Xr. LIEBELER. He%as fair complected: 

Xrs. GARSER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Are those the only two people you ever saw visit Osn-ald? 

3Irs. G.~RsER. n-cll. there n-as that (‘uban or SlRMsh looking any one time 
rang m;r bell in the late afternoon. kind of short. I-cr.r dark 11lnck curly hair, 
and he had a stack of these same l)aml)hlrts in his hand he \yas spreading nut 
on Canal Street there on the l)orch. and he had a stack of them in his hand 

and he asked me about Oswald. and I said he \vas living around on that side 
where the screen porch is, and I saw those things in his hand and I said. “You 
are not going to spread those things on my porch.” and that n-as all, and I 

closed the door and went on about my business. I don’t know, but I guess he 

went over there. 
Mr. LIEBFXER. How many l~nml~lilrts did this man hare in his hand? 
1Irs. GARX’ER. I don’t. kno\V. ‘I nu know how thin those things are, and he 

had a stack about that high. 
Mr. LIEBELER. About 5 inches or G inches. maybe? 

Mrs. GARSER. About that high. 
Mr. LIEBELER. About the width of your hand? 
Mrs. GARSER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. What color were they. do .rnu rcnlember? 

Mrs. G.~RXSR. That I can’t remember. They looketl like yellow and pink. 

all different colors. 
Mr. IJEBELER.. Approximately how old XIS this fellow? 
Mrs. GARSER. Well, he was young. I don’t believe he was young as Oswald, 

but he was young, in his thirties I guess. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Was he as tall as Oswald? 
Mrs. GAR~WR. No, he was shorter. 
Mr. LIEBEEER. Shorter than Oswald? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did he wear sunglasses. if you remember? 
Mrs. GAHSER. So, he didn’t liar-e sunglasses on bevausr il was so late in the 

evening, just about dark. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Was he of a light build, or was he heavy set? 

Mrs. G2\~~ER So, I wouldn’t say. He wasn’t light, wasn’t heavy : he was 
in between that. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did he hare an accellt, do you remember? 
Mrs. GARXER. Yes. That’ s why I said he was either Sljanish or Cuban. I 

don’t know. He speaks broken I?nglish, like. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you tell the FIlI about this gentleman coming there? 

Mrs. GARNEB. Yes. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you mention to the FBI that this man had- 

Mrs. GARNER. The pamphlets? 

Mr. LIEBELER. The pamphlets. 

Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 

Mr. LIERELER. You told that to the FRI? 

Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 

AIL’. LIEBELER. Do you remember apl~rnxin~;ltel~ when this fellow (‘ame to see 
Oswald? 

Mrs. GARSER. That I don’t remember. I know it was around that time, just 
right after he was pic.ked 1111 on Canal Street for distributitta them, It was 
a few days after that. 

I\lr. LIEBELER. Did you learn about his arrest? 
Mrs. GARKER. Yes. 

hfr. LIEBELER. On Canal Street? 
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Mrs. GAKSEK. Yes, I road it in the 1Mpers. 
Mr. I,IEIIEL~. You rend about it ill tile llrIwp~l~K'r? 

Airs. (:ARsER. Yes. 

JIr. I,IEI;ELEK. Ilid you hare any conversation \vith Oswald about that 

incident? 
JIM. (:.\I~EK. So. I don’t think I did myself. So. I didn’t talk to him about 

that. hec.;ruse it was just, before that h:llllK~lled 011 (‘anal Street llr had Wt 
tllenl ,,,I the sc’recn and I 11:rd u,y llusb:nld take 111~111 tlow~~. awl aftpr that, 
that is when he was I)ic,l;ed up on (‘anal Strrrt. 

JIr. LIEIIE~R. \Vhat was this incident \vith the screen? W(~uld rou tell llh 
about that? 

JIrs. G.\RSER. Those pamphlets. “Hands off c’ul):~.” or something like that. He 
had l~:imI~hlcts on the screen l~orcli in the front, and I told my husband go take 
those things down, I didn’t like them there. He \vrnt and told him to take 
them down, and he said who su,, c-vsted that, nut1 111, said I did at~d he took 
them down and never gave us no trouble about it. 

JIr. IJEIIELEH. Let me show you a picture that is marked Exhibit So. 1 to the 
affidavit of your husband Jesse .I. Garnc,r, and I ask you if the leaflet that 
J-au see in that picture is a picture of a leaflet like the one Oswald put on the 
screen ? 

Mrs. GARSER. Yes. that’s it. 
JIr. IJEBFZLER. And do you recoxnize the 1)erron in that picture? 
JIrs. GAKNER. Yes, that is Lee Oswald. I would recognize him from the 

hack of his head. 
JIr. I,IEIIELEK. It appears to be a picture of him handing out pamphlets or 

sheets of paper on which appears the language. “Hands off Cuba,” and some 

other writing that can’t be read. 
Mrs. GARXER. They had snme other writin, w on the bottom, but I never read 

it. I saw this “Hands off Cuba,” and I didn’t like it on the porch and I made 
him take them don-n. That, must have been taken on Canal street; it lnnks like 
it. 

Mr. LIERELER. Do you recognize the surrounding area, the background of. 
the picture? 

Mrs. GARXFR. That’s what I said, it looks like it. It is either (‘anal or 
Royal somewhere. I don’t knolv. It might not be here; I don’t know. 

Mr. LIEBELER. You don’t recognize the background for sure? 
Mrs. GARKER. So. 
Mr. LIERELER. When this incident--- 
Mrs. GAHSER. Let me get my glasses. Maybe I can see better. 
Mr. LIEBELER. When this incident concerning the leaflet <on the screen of the 

porch occurred, was that before or after Oswald had been arrested? 
Mrs. GARNER. That was before. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Before he was arrested? 
Mrs. GARSER. Yes. 
Mr. LIERELER. How long before? 
Mrs. GARNER. That I don’t remember. I don’t remember exactly all that, but 

I know-1 can’t very well see, but it looks like around here somewhere. 
Mr. LIEDELER. Aside from the two different l)eol)le you have previously men- 

tioned as having visited Oswald, one the Cuban or Spanish fellow and the other 
two for a total of three people you saw come to visit Oswald, did you ever see 
anybody else come to visit in his apartment? 

Mrs. GARNER. Sot that I know of. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Late in September sometime, as I understand it, this station 

wagon that brought Oswald’s wife to the apartment in the first place returned? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes; it did. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did it not? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you see who was driving the station wagon at that time? 
&Irs. GARNER. So; I didn’t see who was driving it. All I saw was the station 

wagon. 
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JIr. LIEIIELEI~. You 77eve1’ saw the 17erson \vho came in the station wagon 

thn t time? 
sirs. C:.\RTER. I did not. 
ZIr. LICBEI,ER. I)id yonr husband see that person? 
Mrs. GARS~~~. Yes ; my husband. 

JIr. I,IEBI:LE~. AIt this time. 
Xrs. ( :ARS~R. Yes ; in)- l177sband S:IW her and slw)ke to her. I never did see her. 

Mr. LIEBEIXR. IIe told ~077 it \vas a lady, did he not? 
1173. PARSER. Right. 
;\Ir. LII:III:I.~~ i\nd the 1;1tly. fro777 rc~77tling tl7e nc~wsl7~717t~rs. $077 a77tl yo777’ 

1777,~l1antl nss77metl that this was JIrs. Ruth Paine of Irving, Tes. TI 

JIrs. (:.\RSER. Tl1at’s right. 
Mr. I,IE~EI~R. R77t you yourself never n7rt or talked to Mrs. Paine? 
RIrs. PARSER. I IKJTCT did. 
Xr. Tmmc~r:n. Did you I~ecome aware of the fact that Oswald was employed 

during the time that he lived iii your apartment? Did you know anything about 

his job? 
Xrs. GAKSER. When he rented the apartment he told IIF he was working at 

Ilcily (‘offee Co. on Magazine, wlrate\-er yot7 w11 it. It is a c,c~ffecb c,in717auy. :777(1 

as far as I know I didn’t think he workccl there as long as he did, because he 
xas aln-ags ho7ne, ‘unless he worked at night. 

Mr. LIEBELER. When did ~017 learn that Oswaltl had been dismissed from the 

job, or 110 longcsr wcjrlied at Reily C’c,tf’er (‘0.. if y~777 ever l(~:lrnetl that? 
Mrs. (:IRSF,R. -1s I said. it seemed like when he rented the apartment, I didn’t 

fllinl; he worked 2 or 3 u-eeks. \Vell, but I learned later he didn’t get laid off 
until .Jnly 19. something like that, nnless they changed shifts, because he was 

working in the day at first a77d I used to see him get off the bus in the evening 
coming home. bnt then after that I ditln’t see him any more. He wns always 

sitting on the screen por& reading. IIe must have been working at night. 

He was alwaFvs 077 the side porch. ln-obablF reading all the time. 

Mr. LIEBELER. You say he read a lot? 
Mrs. GARSER. He sure did. 
Mr. LIEBEIXR. Did you see at any time what he was reading? 
Mrs. GARTER. Well, it always was books, like those pocket books and papers, 

real big books, regular books. 
Xr. LIEBEI.ER. You never saw the names of any of the books? 
Mrs. G.\RSER. No ; you couldn’t get that near him. 
Mr. LIEBELER. What else did he do with his spare time besides reading? 
Mrs. GARXER. That’s all I ever saw him do. To say if he ever went out or 

anything like that, he would go brick and forth, catch the WLIS and go, and didn’t 

stay long and (lome 1)ac.k. 110~ many times he went out at night or anything 

like that, I don’t know. I really conldn’t tell you because I wasn’t on that side. 
The few times I did see him I jnst happened to be out there. 

JIr. LIEBELEK. You mentioned something about him wearing a bathing suit. 
Mrs. GARSER. That’s all he always wore, all the time. Always he had thongs 

on and yellow shorts, bathing tr77nks, and nothing on top walking around the 
Fart1 like that. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Also the (‘ommission has been informed that Oswald spent a 
considerable amount of time spraging brigs or insects of one sort or another. 

317s. GARSER. He did. He done that, yes. He was always around the back 

of the hnnse where the bathroom window was, spraying snme sort, and the 
screen porch he would spray. 

Mr. LIEBEIXR. Did you ever talk to him abont this spraying activity of his? 
Mrs. (:ARNER. Xn; I never did. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Do ~~777 know xvhether yo’77r husband did? 
Mrs. GARXE~R. X0; he didn’t. I don’t g77ess he did; he never said anything 

abont it, but there were 17lent.v of ants and I guess that is why he was spraying. 
They always had a lot of ants, you know, and roaches. I know they had a lot 
of roaches. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Cockroaches? 
Mrs. GARNER. In tht7t apartment, when they left. 
Mr. LIEBEI.ER. Did he ever complain to ~077 about, them? 
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Jlrs. GARSER. So. We never had them before he moved. Whenever we used 
to spray. we had the pest c,ontrol, but when he moved out they had plenty of 
them. They left the l)la~ filthy, too. 

Mr. I,IE~ELE:K. The l)1ac3fl was dirty whf~11 he left? 
1113. G~11sm. il’:rs it? The icebox was broken. the freezer door was broken 

off, the stove was broken, the mattress was ruined. 
Mr. LrEn~nEa. \Vhat was wrong with the mattress? 
;\Irs. GARSER. I guess the baby. 
Air. LIEIIELER. Do you kno\v whether his wife, Jlarina, liked the apartment? 
Mrs. GARSEK I don’t know. She never did say anything about it. 
Mr. TJEBELER. She never did sag anything about it? 
Mrs. GARNER. I never did talk to her about any apartment. 
Mr. IJERELER. Did you yourself 1)ersonnlly see when this station wagon left? 
11~3. GARNER. Ko; I didn’t SC* it. 
Mr. LIEBELER. It arrived late in September 1%X? 
Mrs. GARNER. I didn’t see when it left; no. 
Mr. LIEBELER. When was the last time you sit\v the station wagon, please? 
Mrs. GARNER. Well. whatever day that was, Sunday or Monday, whenever 

they left. It was about that morning. Like I said, early that morning they 
was packing it up, and then later on through the day between 70 and 11 I looked 
out there and it was gone. 

1\Ir. LIEBELER. This would be either Sunday or Monday, September 22 or 23? 
Is that right? 

Mrs. GARNER. That’s right. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You are not exactly positive which it was? 
Mrs. GARNER. I am not sure whether it was Sunday or Monday. 
Mr. LIEBEI,ER. Your husband is pretty sure it was Monday. 
Mrs. GARPSER. He is sure it was Monday; yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. The 23d of September. 
Mrs. GARXER. Yes. 
Xr. LIEBELER. And you have no recollection that is contrary to that; is that 

correct? 
Mrs. GARNER. No; I haven’t. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you see Oswald leave, when he finally left 3. apartment? 
Mrs. GARNER. No. 
Mr. LIEBEI.ER. Do you know when he left? 
Mrs. GARNER. Well, I figure he left that same night, whatever day that wagon 

left, myself. I don’t think he come back. He might have come back in that 
apartment to get his stuff, whatever he had. I don’t think he stayecl there that 
night at all, that’s what I believe. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Your husband said in the discussion we had with him pre- 
viously that he heard some noise in the apartment the night the station wagon 
left. 

Mrs. GARSER. He might have heard him packing up stuff getting ready to 
leave. I don’t think he come back after he left that night; I think he left that 
night. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Your husband did say he thought he heard these noises about 
7 or i’:30 in the evening. Is that right? 

Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You say you think the noise he heard was just the noise of 

Oswald getting his stuff and leaving? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes; getting his stuff to get moving. 
Mr. LIEBELER. In any event, you never saw Oswald around the place at all 

after the day the station wagon left; i, that right? 
Mrs. GARNER. No ; I didn’t. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you discuss with anybody who lived in the neighborhood 

or in the apartment house when actually Oswald did leave? When we think 
about this question, let’s first of all confine ourselves to the period of time prior 
to the assassination. Were you concerned about when Oswald left or how 
he left, prior to the time of the assassination? 

Mrs. GARNER. You mean how he left? 
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Mr. LIEIIFXER. That is, did you talk to any of the neighbors or anybody in the 
building? 

Mrs. GARSER. When they seen him leave? 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did they see him go? 
Mrs. GARSER. Yes. I don’t rememher asking anybody, just figured that he 

had skipped and left that night. I didn’t bother asking anybody about that, but 
later I was talking to JIr. Rogers, one of the tenants. and he said yes, he seen 
him leave about that time that evening, the bus was coming and he ran out n?ith 

his suitcase. 
Mr. LIEI~ELER. That was after the assassination, you talked to Mr. Rogers? 

Mrs. GARXER. Yes ; definitely after. 
Mr. LIEBELER. After you had been interviewed by the FBI and Secret Service? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Mr. Rogers-what is his full name ; do you know? 
Mrs. GARNER. Eric Rogers ; is all I know. 
Mr. LIE~ELER. Does he still live there? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Mr. Rogers told you he saw Oswald the same evening that the 

station n-agon left? Is that right? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. And he saw Oswald come out of the apartment house and run 

to catch a bus? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Is that right? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. And it was about dark? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did hlr. Rogers say how many suitcases Oswald had in his 

hand? 
hIrs. GARNER. He just said with his suitcases or suitcase. I don’t remember 

exactly what he said. 
hlr. LIFBELER. You are not able to tell us whether Oswald had one suitcase, 

two suitcases with him when he left, or what? 
Mrs. GARNER. No. 
hIr. LIEBELER. And 3Ir. Rogers didn’t tell you? 
hlrs. GARNER. No; I didn’t ask him. I don’t remember. I don’t remember, 

really if it was the same day the station wagon left or not he told me, and I 
don’t think he even said that day it was, but it must have been right after 
that, you know, what night or the next day. I feel like it was that night. It 
must have been, because I know he didn’t have any reason to stay around there 
any longer. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Mr. Rogers didn’t specifically say it was the same day? 
hfrs. GARNER. No. 
hfr. LIEBELER. Did he ever say what kind of luggage Oswald had? 
hIrs. GARNER. No. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You never saw Oswald with any suitcases of any kind? 
Mrs. GARNER. I never was in the apartment. After they rented the al)artment, 

I never went in the apartment. 
Mr. LIEBJCLER. And you never saw him outside with any luggage? 
Mrs. GARNER. No. 
Mr. LIEBELER. And you never saw what kind of luggage they were packing in 

the station wagon? 
hlrs. GARNER. I saw boxes, but I never did see any luggage. I saw boxes, and 

baby beds and playpens and stuff like that. 
Mr. LIEBELER. But you don’t remember noticing any specific suitcase of any 

kind? 
Mrs. GARNER. No. 
hIr. LIEBELER. Did you form an opinion as to whether lllarina Oswald could 

speak English or not? 
Mrs. GARNER. Well, I didn’t think she could speak English at all. When I 

heard her on television say a few words, something like that, I was surprised 
because at home she never said anything. And another thing, she would nod, 
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try to tell you hello when he wasn’t there, but if he was there like they was 
sitting on the steps or something, or they would go through the drive and he was 
there, she wouldn’t even look at you. 

Mr. LIEBELER. She was more friendly and outgoing when Oswald wasn’t there? 
;\lrs. GARNER. Yes; when he was there, she wouldn’t bare nothing to say. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you ever see a rifle or gun of any kind in the apartment, 

or around the apartment? 
Mrs. GARNER. No. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Or the station wagon, or just anywhere? 
Mrs. GARNER. No, sir. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You never had any reason to believe that Oswald had a rifle in 

his possession? 
Mrs. GARNER. No ; I never knew about that, never saw anything looked like a 

gun or anything like that. Like I said, they have asked me that so many times 
before, and they just packed this station wagon and if he had a gull I don’t guess 
he put it where anybody could see it, and whatever was in the station wagon 
could have been, I mean anything with value, because they took a few days 
packing it to leave and it sat out there at night on the street. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Without locking, or do you know whether they locked the station 
wagon? 

Mrs. GARNER. I don’t know whether they locked it, but that don’t do much 
good in this city. It don’t do any good to lock your doors ; what good does it do? 
I nail mine ; that is better yet. 

Mr. LIEBELEK. Did you discuss with anybody besides Mr. Rogers whether or 
not Oswald left on the same day his wife did, or how he left? 

;\lrs. GARSER. Do you mean in the neighborhood? 
Mr. LIEBELER. Yes. 
Mrs. GARNER. I never talked too much to them, you know, unless I might be 

talking to Miss Eames next door and said he might have left that same night or 
something like that, but that’s about all. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Was that Mrs. Eames? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Mrs. Doris 1:. Eames? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. She lives at 4905 Magazine Street? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes; right next to Oswald’s apartment, in other words, and 

their kitchen windows was even to each other, across from e:lch other. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did Oswald get any mail that you know of while he lived 

in the apartment 4907 or 4905 Jlagazine Street? 
Mrs. GARNER. ?;ot that I know of. I never went around the mailboxes to 

find out t.hat, never went around the mailbox to see what kind of mail. and 
after he left I checked the mailbox and my husband found a light and gas 
bill and sent it back to the company. 

Jlr. LIEBELER. I believe you said Oswald actually owed you about 2 weeks’ 
rent when they left. Is that right? 

Mrs. GARNER Fifteen days, something like that, 2 or 3 weeks. I think it 
was 3 weeks rent, because the last time when I sent my husband -to see about 
the rent, I told him it. was going to be 3 weeks, and, “You know he isn’t going 
to catch up with that and pay another month’s rent and stay here by himself.” 

Mr. LIEBELER. He moved in on the 9th of Mar ; is that right? 
Mrs. G~RXER. Yes. 
Mr. LIEBELER. And he left abont the 22d of September or the 23d? 
Airs. GARNER. About the 22d or 2:3d. 
3Ir. LIIXBEIXR. So he would have had to pay up the rent through the 9th of 

September? 
JIrs. G.~RNER. Through the 9th. the 9th of September; that was when. 
Jlr. LIEDELER. That was when the rent came due again? 
l\Irs. GARSER. Right. 
Mr. LIIXSELER. .\nd he pnid his rent for the month? 

Jlrs. GARSEH. You SW. he was lxlitl up to the 9th of September. 
Ur. LIEUELER. He was paid through the 9th of September? 
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Mrs. GARNER. Right; and after the 9th he started on another month but 
never paid me. 

Mr. LIEBELEK He left owing rent for the period from September 9 until the 
time he left? 

Mrs. GARNER. The 24th or 23d, whatever date it was. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you know Mr. Louis N. Rico? 
Mrs. GARNER. Yes ; I think that is my tenant in the back in the detached apart- 

ment, away in the back downstairs, Louis Rico. 
Mr. LIEBELER. They don’t live there any more? 
Mrs. GARNEB. No; they moved. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Do you know whether they had anything to do with Oswald? 
Mrs. GABNEX No; he never did talk to him. Oswald wouldn’t bother with 

nobody. 
Mr. LIEBELER. Did you ever see Oswald drive a car? 
Mrs. GARNER. No. 
Mr. LIEBELFX. Do you know whether he could drive? 
Mrs. GARNER. No; I couldn’t answer that. I don’t know. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You had no way of knowing where Oswald went when he 

left your apartment house, do you? 
Mrs. GARNER. No; I sure don’t. 
Mr. LIEBELER. As far as you know, Oswald intended to stay on in the apart- 

ment, at least that is what he had told your husband? 
Mrs. GARNER. That’s what I figured all the time, and every time I passed he 

was sitting on the porch, or either sitting by the lamp inside of the living room 
when it was dark, reading. 

Mr. LIEEXLER. Can you think of anything else you remember about Oswald? 
Is there anything else you know about him that the Commission ought to know 
that I have not asked you about? 

Mrs. GARNER. Well, like I say, every time I talk, I tried to think, and there 
is really nothing. I just usually always stay by myself and never go to the 
door unless I have to. The only thing is-1 did hear a couple of times like they 
were arguing and she would be crying. I guess they were arguing, I couldn’t 
understand the Russian language and she would be crying, and that went on 
a couple of hours at a time, and I flgured that was family trouble. I couldn’t 
even understand what they were saying. 

Mr. LIEBELER. Did they seem to have more family trouble than most people, 
or do you think they got along fairly well? 

Mrs. GARNER. It is just about twice I heard it in the months they were there. 
Mr. LIEBELER. You didn’t have the impression- 
Mrs. GARNER. I didn’t think they was arguing, because when they talk that 

language it sounds like they are arguing all the time to me, but those two times 
she happened to be crying, and I could hear her raising her voice higher and him 
too. He was just abrupt. 

Mr. LIEBELEK You didn’t have the impression they were having any particular 
difficulty with their marriage, did you? 

Mrs. GARNER. No. 
Mr. LIEBELER. They didn’t seem to have--- 
Mrs. GAXNEX. It didn’t seem that way to me. You never did see them 

together in the daytime. I saw them once when they left for that weekend, 
and that is the only time they had left there together. 

Mr. LIEBELEB. She stayed at home pretty much? 
Mrs. GABNER. She stayed home all the time, and I see her coming from the 

grocery store once in awhile. 
Mr. LIEBELEU. I don’t believe I have any more questions at this time, Mrs. 

Garner, if you can’t think of anything else you would like to add. I think 
we can terminate the deposition. I do want to thank you for the patience 
that you and your husband hare shown to me and for the cooperation you have 
given us in coming down here and testifying. On behalf of the Commission 
I want to thank you both very much. 

Mrs. GARNER. I am only too glad to do it. Anything else we can do, it would 
be all right. 
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